
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
1 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, July 5, 2016.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a notice 2 
posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Ald. Jim Bialecki, Ald. Jim Binash 5 
(alternate), Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler, City Engineer Jarrod Holter 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Ald. Bob Muth 8 
 9 
Excused Absences:  Mayor Joe Chilsen, Ald. Barry Blomquist 10 
 11 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting 12 
 13 
Motion by Ald. Binash, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the minutes from the previous 14 
meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 15 
 16 
On voice vote, motion carried. 17 
 18 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 19 
 20 
Ald. Bialecki called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that 21 
portion of the meeting. 22 
 23 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 24 
 25 
Item 4 – Review and consideration of parking restrictions at the intersection of 3rd Avenue 26 
North and Main Street 27 
 28 
Jarrod noted that a letter from Dean Dickinson, the owner of the building located at the corner of 29 
3rd Avenue North and Main Street, has been included in board members’ packets.  Dean stated in 30 
his letter that new tenants have moved into the building, and he is requesting that some of the 31 
one-hour parking spaces be changed to 15-minute parking spaces.  Jarrod referred to a map he 32 
had distributed to board members and noted the parking stall closest to the crosswalk on 3rd 33 
Avenue North at Main Street that is labeled 15-minute parking.  Dean is requesting that the 15-34 
minute parking be extended north to the driveway that enters the rear of his building.  This action 35 
would create two parking stalls.  Dean also is requesting that the two parking stalls located in 36 
front of the property on Main Street be changed to 15-minute parking.  As a result, a total of four 37 
stalls would be designated as 15-minute parking.  Jarrod said past practice has been to send 38 
adjacent businesses a public meeting notice for the following month’s Board of Public Works 39 
meeting if the request is determined to be valid.  Jarrod said, “One of [the adjacent businesses] 40 
has quick turnover, so that’s the reason he wants the parking the way it is.  But there are a lot of 41 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
2 

other businesses in the area such as Sue Kolve’s and Maggie’s and the bike shop [Blue Heron 42 
Bicycles] … Fifteen minutes probably isn’t going to work for them because those appointments 43 
and items take longer than 15 minutes.” 44 
 45 
Ald. Bialecki said, “I’m inclined to think that way myself.  We’ve been through this several 46 
times over the years.” 47 
 48 
Fred said he would be opposed to making a change because there should be off-street parking 49 
present. 50 
 51 
Jarrod said there are a few stalls in the rear of the building.  However, Jarrod also pointed out 52 
there are upstairs residential rental tenants.  The ground floor is retail, and the second floor is 53 
residential.  Jarrod said the stalls are reserved for the residential tenants. 54 
 55 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to deny a request to change the parking restrictions at 56 
the intersection of 3rd Avenue North and Main Street. 57 
 58 
Ald. Binash noted there are businesses in the area where patrons cannot conduct business in 15 59 
minutes.  Ald. Binash also asked how the city would be able to supervise parking in this area. 60 
 61 
On voice vote, motion carried. 62 
 63 
Item 5 – Review and consideration of Fluid Applied Floor at Public Works Facility Request 64 
for Proposals 65 
 66 
Jarrod noted he had distributed to board members a copy of the Request for Proposals for the 67 
Fluid Applied Floor at the Public Works Facility.  This item was budgeted in the 2016 Capital 68 
Improvements Projects list.  Five bids were submitted, and Dynamic Concrete Resurfacing, LLC 69 
was the apparent low bidder at $87,244.60.  Jarrod said $80,000 was budgeted in the 2016 70 
Capital Improvements Budget, and he noted that work was added on the bollards, posts and other 71 
areas.  A specification was written by HSR Associates to ensure the city will obtain everything it 72 
needs.  Jarrod said the floor has been deteriorating every year; therefore, the cost to repair it will 73 
be slightly more than originally expected.  Jarrod said the 2016 CIB lists fund sources of other 74 
bond issues the city previously had, and he noted they all have adequate funds to cover the bid 75 
amount. 76 
 77 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Binash, to accept Dynamic Concrete Resurfacing, 78 
LLC’s bid of $87,244.60 for Fluid Applied Floor at Public Works Facility. 79 
 80 
On voice vote, motion carried. 81 
 82 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
3 

Item 6 – Review and consideration of Fluid Applied Roof at Omni Center Request for 83 
Proposals 84 
 85 
Jarrod said HSR Associates also had assisted the city in writing a specification for this project.  86 
Jarrod said the coating is a polyurethane acrylic roof coating, and he noted that $97,000 had been 87 
budgeted for the project.  Jarrod said Parks and Recreation Director Dan Wick examined other 88 
products and found a spray-on product that Jarrod said he believes will be more effective.  89 
Seamless Roofing, LLC submitted the lone bid at $58,000, and Jarrod said HSR Associates staff 90 
informed him this bid is within the realm of the project. 91 
 92 
Ald. Bialecki asked if the Parks and Recreation Board is aware of this. 93 
 94 
Ald. Binash, who sits on the Parks and Recreation Board, said yes, noting that board members 95 
had hoped that the bid would come in lower and thus help with other Omni Center projects such 96 
as the audio system.  Ald. Binash also inquired about the length of the warranty. 97 
 98 
Jarrod said the duration of the warranty is 18 years. 99 
 100 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Binash, to accept Seamless Roofing, LLC’s bid of 101 
$58,000 for Fluid Applied Roof at Omni Center. 102 
 103 
On voice vote, motion carried. 104 
 105 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of Wisconsin Department of Transportation 106 
State/Municipal agreement for I-90 project 1071-06-80/83/86/89 107 
 108 
Jarrod noted that an updated State/Municipal agreement from the Wisconsin Department of 109 
Transportation has been included in board members’ packets.  This agreement is for the 110 
Interstate 90 project that is being done over a three-year period.  WisDOT will be completing the 111 
Rose Street portion of the project in 2017, as well as the on- and off-ramps off I-90.  Jarrod noted 112 
that the city’s primary sanitary sewer interceptor line proceeds from George Street at the city 113 
limit line into the City of La Crosse and ending at the Moore Street lift station.  Jarrod said the I-114 
90 westbound off-ramp will be constructed in a new location and will be going over the city’s 115 
existing sanitary sewer, which was not constructed with casing for that work to be done.  116 
Therefore, the sanitary sewer will be replaced.  As part of the agreement, WisDOT will pay a 117 
portion of the relocation cost.  Jarrod referred to page 2 of the agreement, which includes a 118 
“Summary of Costs” table, and noted that the estimated total cost of Project No. 1071-06-89 is 119 
$72,000.  The state funds total $45,950, and the City of Onalaska’s funds total $26,050.  Jarrod 120 
said WisDOT typically pays 90 percent of the relocation cost and noted that the pipe will be 121 
upsized.  This is the reason the city will be paying a higher percentage. 122 
 123 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
4 

Jarrod said, “We did originally look at this line in the Capital Improvements Budget as replacing 124 
the line under Interstate 90 portion.  But the pipe is in a casing that’s been functioning for almost 125 
50 years with the current loading on it.  There was no justification to replace the pipe, so we’re 126 
leaving it in place.  If at such time it would need to be replaced due to size or deterioration, we 127 
would have to use the same construction methods of jacking a new pipe under the interstate.  We 128 
would not be saving anything by installing it as part of the project.  As long as we can get more 129 
useful life out of what’s left in that sanitary sewer system under the interstate, I feel it’s best to 130 
leave it in and wait until that project is needed.” 131 
 132 
Ald. Bialecki referred to the “Summary of Costs” table and asked if the city already had 133 
committed to paying $20,000 for Project No. 1071-06-86, and $151,500 for non-participating 134 
water and roadway. 135 
 136 
Jarrod said yes, noting that these costs are tied into items such as lighting by Dairy Queen as well 137 
as projects that already have been completed.  Jarrod also said $100,000 had been budgeted in 138 
the 2016 CIB because he had envisioned more work needing to be done. 139 
 140 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve Wisconsin Department of 141 
Transportation State/Municipal agreement for I-90 project 1071-06-80/83/86/89. 142 
 143 
Ald. Binash asked if the project is scheduled for 2018. 144 
 145 
Jarrod said it is scheduled for summer 2017, noting that everything from the Burlington Northern 146 
railroad bridges on State Trunk Highway 35 to the Rose Street Kentucky Fried Chicken in the 147 
City of La Crosse will be under construction, as will the area near McDonald’s on West George 148 
Street.  Jarrod said McDonald’s will be removed, and the new entrance to Bridgeview Plaza will 149 
be constructed.  Jarrod also said the off-ramp that affects the city’s sewer will be located the 150 
north side of I-90.  The off-ramp will be relocated to a new location, and the new eastbound 151 
ramp will be constructed near the concrete plant in La Crosse. 152 
 153 
On voice vote, motion carried. 154 
 155 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of change order #5 for Well #9 Reconstruction Project 156 
 157 
Jarrod said this change order includes two items:  an increase of $243.60 for a chlorine pump and 158 
additional piping, and it also changes the final completion date to July 22, 2016. 159 
 160 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Binash, to approve change order #5 for Well #9 161 
Reconstruction Project, which includes $243.60 for a chlorine pump and extending the final 162 
completion date to July 22, 2016. 163 
 164 
On voice vote, motion carried. 165 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
5 

 166 
Item 9 – Review and consideration of change order #1 for 2016 pavement project 167 
 168 
Jarrod referred to a copy of a map of the City of Onalaska Cemetery, which includes two 169 
crosshatched ovals that represent the areas of pavement replacement that was bid out under the 170 
2016 Cemetery Main Street Improvement Project.  Jarrod also referred to First and Second 171 
avenues on the map, noting they go to the Main Street entrances.  One entrance will be for 172 
pedestrians only, and the other will remain a vehicle entrance.  Jarrod said staff looked at the 173 
2016 pavement project and spoke to Mathy Construction, which quoted a price that seemed “in 174 
line” with the work that would be involved.  Jarrod said approximately $25,000 was saved from 175 
the Heather Hills portion of the project, which was paved approximately two weeks ago.  Jarrod 176 
said he believes this is the ideal time to repave the cemetery streets, stating he believes at a 177 
minimum both First and Second avenues should be addressed.  Jarrod said he also would like to 178 
repave Corinthian Avenue, which is the primary east-west street. 179 
 180 
Ald. Bialecki said he agrees with Jarrod and asked Fred if this is a Capital Improvements Project 181 
or strictly a Cemetery Enterprise Project. 182 
 183 
Fred said it will be charged to the Enterprise Fund and noted will be under the construction work 184 
in progress, which will turn into an asset.  Fred noted that First Avenue comes to a dead end and 185 
asked Jarrod how visitors to the cemetery turn around. 186 
 187 
Jarrod said signage will be installed near the garage.  Jarrod also noted that Dorian Avenue is 188 
gravel. 189 
 190 
Fred asked if Dorian, Grecian and Ionian avenues are all gravel. 191 
 192 
Jarrod said one is gravel and the other two are grass-mowed strips.  Jarrod also said that while he 193 
does not want to totally block access by the cemetery garage, he wants to try to prohibit as much 194 
vehicle traffic in this area as possible. 195 
 196 
Ald. Binash said it is his understanding that savings from one project will be utilized to address 197 
this project. 198 
 199 
Jarrod said this is what he is proposing. 200 
 201 
Ald. Bialecki noted that this is strictly an Enterprise Fund and said, “That’s going to have to 202 
weigh off into some project unrelated and it may have to be charged back.”  Ald. Bialecki also 203 
asked Fred to cash flow the Enterprise Fund prior to the July 12 Common Council meeting. 204 
 205 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Binash, to approve change order #1 for 2016 pavement 206 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
6 

project. 207 
 208 
On voice vote, motion carried. 209 
 210 
Item 10 – Review and consideration of renaming 2nd Avenue 211 
 212 
Ald. Bialecki noted Mayor Chilsen had mentioned this at the June 14 Common Council meeting 213 
and said he would rather that the Mayor be present to explain the nature of this request. 214 
 215 
Ald. Binash said he believes either one or two citizens had suggested a particular name for 2nd 216 
Avenue, adding he believes the Council had discussed the fact the businesses along 2nd Avenue 217 
would have to change their addresses and headings. 218 
 219 
Fred said the board either can table this item indefinitely or take no action. 220 
 221 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Binash, to table review and consideration of renaming 2nd 222 
Avenue. 223 
 224 
On voice vote, motion carried. 225 
 226 
Item 11 – Review and consideration of Professional Engineering Services for smoke testing 227 
a portion of the sanitary sewer system 228 
 229 
Jarrod said board members’ packets include a map that outlines the area that will be smoke 230 
tested.  It is bordered by Redwood Street on the north, 9th Avenue North and South on the west, 231 
Wilson Street on the south, and United States Highway 53 on the east.  Jarrod said a majority of 232 
the sanitary sewer in this area was installed in the 1950s and 60s.  As part of the mandated 233 
sanitary sewer system collection system maintenance reporting, it has been suggested that this 234 
procedure be completed.  Jarrod said staff has spoken with Strand Associates about assisting 235 
with the procedure.  Strand Associates would bring the equipment, and the city would send 236 
letters and provide staff for onsite assistance.  Jarrod said, “We have never done this in the City 237 
of Onalaska, but it is of common practice to do it. … I think it’s going to be a good thing for our 238 
sanitary sewer system.  It will help us be in compliance, and hopefully ultimately we either prove 239 
we have a sturdy system or we know of places we have to fix.” 240 
 241 
Ald. Binash asked if residents in the testing area might see smoke in their homes. 242 
 243 
Jarrod said it is possible and admitted he has never seen the procedure done in person – only on 244 
video. 245 
 246 
Fred asked if the procedure could prompt several calls to 911. 247 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
7 

 248 
Jarrod said there would be a “very hearty” public education campaign, including sending letters 249 
prior to testing and placing door hangers on citizens’ homes the day before the test is 250 
administered. 251 
 252 
Ald. Binash asked if it would be possible to alert emergency services. 253 
 254 
Jarrod said a Code Red message probably will be sent.  Jarrod also noted that the test will cover 255 
approximately one-ninth of the city, or 10 miles of the 95 miles of sanitary sewer within the city. 256 
 257 
Ald. Bialecki asked if the purpose of the test is to determine if there are illegal hookups or 258 
leakage that staff is unaware of. 259 
 260 
Jarrod said that is the primary goal.  Jarrod also said that if this test is successful, the next area 261 
that could be tested is Green Coulee, where there is more infiltration. 262 
 263 
Fred asked Jarrod if his goal is to charge this to an expenditure account in the Enterprise Fund. 264 
 265 
Jarrod said yes, noting it was included in the 2016 Budget. 266 
 267 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Binash, to approve hiring Strand Associates for Professional 268 
Engineering Services for smoke testing a portion of the sanitary sewer system at a cost not to 269 
exceed $10,000. 270 
 271 
On voice vote, motion carried. 272 
 273 
Item 12 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., Kreibich 274 
Landscaping, Olympic Builders, Paragon Associates, State of Wisconsin Department of 275 
Transportation, Fowler & Hammer, Gerke Excavating, University of Wisconsin-La Crosse 276 
(Mississippi Valley Archaeological Center), Wieser Brothers General Contractors, Ayres 277 
Associates, Process Research Solutions and any other contractor/developer  278 
 279 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 280 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 281 

 282 
July 5, 2016 283 

 284 
    Original 285 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 286 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 287 
       288 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
8 

1.  HSR ASSOCIATES 289 
     PW Floor & Omni Center Roof 290 
     Design 291 
     Estimate #1 – FINAL $   1,500.00   $     -        $   -   $   1,460.50 292 
 293 
2.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 294 
     Well #9 295 
     Construction 296 
     Estimate #15   $   157,200.00   $     -        $   156,148.62  $   1,051.38 297 
 298 
3.  SEH INC. 299 
     Riders Club Rd. & PH 300 
     Design 301 
     Estimate #12    $   148,348.18    $     -       $   107,277.14 $   1,496.32 302 
 303 
4.  SEH INC. 304 
     Phase 1 – Waterfront 305 
     Design 306 
     Estimate #8      $   147,400.00$     7,100 (CSM)$   174,913.98 $   16,200.29 307 
      $74,450 (Constr.) 308 
 309 
5.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 310 
     South Kinney Coulee Lift Station 311 
     Updated Design 312 
     Estimate #8    $   10,000.00 $    24,100.00 $   16,035.04  $   376.40 313 
 314 
6.  FOWLER & HAMMER, INC. 315 
     2016 Cemetery Main St. Project 316 
     Construction 317 
     Estimate #3    $   230,821.23$    -  $   140,463.34  $   12,871.92 318 
 319 
7.  KREIBICH LANDSCAPING 320 
     2016 Tree Planting Project 321 
     Construction 322 
     Estimate #2    $   250,567.00$    -  $   227,442.70  $   9,174.00 323 
 324 
8.  PROCESS RESEARCH SOLUTIONS, LLC 325 
     Water Sampling 326 
     Design 327 
     Estimate #1 – FINAL   $   5,500.00 $    -  $   -   $   5,408.09 328 
 329 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
9 

9.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 330 
     2016 Pavement Project 331 
     Construction 332 
     Estimate #1    $   1,467,229.50 $    - $   -   $   309,714.26 333 
 334 
10.  GERKE EXCAVATING 335 
     2016 Utility Project 336 
     Construction 337 
     Estimate #3    $   682,945.97$    -  $   254,694.64  $   168,571.22 338 
 339 
11.  WIESER BROTHERS GENERAL CONTRACTORS 340 
     Great River Landing – Phase 1 341 
     Construction 342 
     Estimate #2    $   2,122.178.26 $    -  $   73,697.68 $   209,947.60 343 
 344 
12.  FOWLER & HAMMER INC. 345 
     2016 Miscellaneous Concrete Project 346 
     Construction 347 
     Estimate #2   $   118,262.50  $    -  $   35,622.63 $   10,203.00 348 
 349 
13.  AYRES ASSOCIATES (02632) 350 
     I-90 Sanitary Sewer 351 
     Design 352 
     Estimate #5    $   48,600.00  $    -  $   8,429.52 $   711.14 353 
 354 
14.  STATE OF WI – DOT  355 
     STH 35 356 
     Water Main Installation 357 
     (7190-06-30) 358 
     Estimate #1    $   53,000.00  $    -  $   -  $   71,988.28 359 
 360 
15.  BRAUN INTERTEC 361 
     Great River Landing – Phase 1 362 
     Construction 363 
     Estimate #1    $   6,675.00  $    -  $   -  $   941.25 364 
 365 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Binash, to approve the 15 pay estimates as shown on 366 
the document dated July 5, 2016. 367 
 368 
Ald. Binash inquired about the cost of archaeological services. 369 
 370 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
10 

Jarrod said MVAC was left from June, adding that more bills are forthcoming. 371 
 372 
Ald. Binash asked Jarrod if he knows how much the board is approving for MVAC. 373 
 374 
Jarrod said the city had received a bill for the paperwork to be submitted.  Jarrod said MVAC 375 
completed a monthly time card at the end of June and expressed optimism that MVAC will 376 
provide an estimate by mid-July. 377 
 378 
Ald. Bialecki said it is his understanding that archaeological costs have tripled and asked Jarrod 379 
to determine if there will be an impact to the original proposal for the entire project. 380 
 381 
Jarrod said he has asked MVAC for this information.  Jarrod noted that $17,500 was budgeted 382 
and approved, and he said a full archaeological crew (12 to 15 individuals) had been onsite for 383 
one week. 384 
 385 
On voice vote, motion carried. 386 
 387 
Item 13 – Closed Session 388 
 389 
To consider a motion to convene in Closed Session under Section 19.85(1)(e) of the Wisconsin 390 
Statutes for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the 391 
investing of public funds or conducting other specified public business whenever competitive or 392 
bargaining reasons require a closed session: 393 
 394 

• Agreement for sewer conveyance and treatment La Crosse-Onalaska 395 
 396 
If any action is required in Open Session, as the result of the Closed Session, the Board of Public 397 
Works will reconvene in Open Session to take the necessary action and/or continue on with the 398 
printed agenda. 399 
 400 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Binash, to convene in Closed Session. 401 
 402 
On roll call vote:  Ald. Jim Binash – aye, City Engineer Jarrod Holter – aye, Financial Services 403 
Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler – aye, Ald. Jim Bialecki – aye.  In Closed Session. 404 
 405 
 406 
Recorded by: 407 
 408 
Kirk Bey 409 

Reviewed 7/7/16 by Jarrod Holter 
 


